
 
 
 
 
 
 Please ask for: 

 Linda Coote 
 Direct dial: 

 (023) 9254 5340 
 Fax: 
 (023) 9254 5587 
 E-mail: 

 linda.coote@gosport.gov.uk 
  

21 February 2023 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Community & Environment Board 
DATE: 1 March 2023 

TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote 
 
 
 
 
DAVID WILLIAMS 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 
 

The Mayor (Councillor Hutchison (ex-Officio) and Councillor Chegwyn (ex-Officio)) 
Councillor Westerby (Chairman) 

Councillor Miss Kelly (Vice-Chair) 
 
 

Councillor Mrs Huggins 
Councillor Mrs Cully 
Councillor Johnston 
 

Councillor Maynard 
Councillor Mrs Morgan 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 
 



Community & Environment Board 
1 March 2023 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

   

1.   APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE   

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 

as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 

personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 8)  

  To sign as a true and correct record the minutes of the meeting held 

on 10 January 2023 
 

 

4.   DEPUTATIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by Monday 27th February 2023. The total time for 
deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not exceed 10 
minutes) 
 

 

5.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
27th February 2023 
 

 

6.   STOKES BAY EAST SEAWALL REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND 
STUDIES. (Pages 9 - 16) 

 

 This report is to provide Members with a status update on the Stokes 
Bay East Seawall Replacement Project and longer term option 
appraisal and design study, Gosport. 
 

 

7.   CONSTRUCTION OF FLOOD DEFENCE STRUCTURES AT 
FORTON (Pages 17 - 24) 

 

 This report updates Members on progress with the Forton coastal  



Community & Environment Board 
1 March 2023 

 
 

defence scheme since the update in January 2023 and sets out the 
next stages for project delivery. 
 

8.   CONSTRUCTION OF FLOOD DEFENCE STRUCTURES AT 
ALVERSTOKE (Pages 25 - 30) 

 

 This report updates Members on the Alverstoke coastal defence 
scheme since the update in January 2023 and sets out the next 
stages for the project. 
 

 

9.   ANY OTHER ITEMS   

 



Community & Environment Board 
10 January 2023 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 10 JANUARY 2023 

 
 
 
Councillors Mrs Huggins, Westerby, Mrs Cully, Johnston, Maynard, Mrs Morgan and 
Ms Ballard (Substituting for Miss Kelly) Chegwyn (ex-officio) 
 
 
27. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
Apologies for non attendance were received from Councillor Kelly who was substituted by 
Councillor Ballard 
 
28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Huggins declared a non pecuniary interest in item 8 due to her involvement with 
St Vincent College Estate Management. 
 
29. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 21 SEPTEMBER AND  16 

NOVEMBER 2022  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2022 were signed as a 
true and correct record with acknowledgement of the line in item 15 regarding funding in the 
Capital Programme also applied to item 14. 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2022 were signed as a true and 
correct record. 
 
30. DEPUTATIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
There were none 
 
31. PUBLIC QUESTIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none 
 
32. PRESENTATION ON THE AIMS OF THE SOLENT CLUSTER BY CLLR MAYNARD  
 
Councillor Maynard fed back to the Board his visit to the launch of the Solent Cluster.  
 
The keynote speakers at the launch on November 1 2022 were: 
 
Anne- Marie Mountfield- Solent Local Enterprise Partnership (SLEP) 
 
Dr. Lyndsey-Marie Armstrong- Associate Professor faculty of Engineering and Physical 
Sciences at the University of Southampton 
 
Will Lockhead- Deputy director, Head of Hydrogen Production, Storage and Carbon 
Capture Business Models. Works within the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial 
Strategy, reporting directly to Government Ministers. 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Community & Environment Board 
10 January 2023 

 

2 

 
Matt Crocker- Senior Vice President Low carbon Emissions, ExonMobil, overseeing the 
setting up of Hydrogen Processing and Storage facility at Fawley. 
 
The Cluster Group must fulfill these criteria: 
 

 Be diverse: a mix of academia, public and private business, local influencers and decision makers 

 Demonstrate cooperation, pooling of ideas, rigorous application 

 Demonstrate societal benefits 

 Development of a wider supply chain 

 
 
He wished to ensure that contact would be maintained and the next meeting attended by an 
Officer who could then prepare a report for Board. 
 
33. CONSTRUCTION OF FLOOD DEFENCE STRUCTURES AT ALVERSTOKE  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Streetscene updating Members on the 
Alverstoke coastal defence scheme since the update in September 2022 and setting out the 
next stages for the project. 
 
Much of the discussion related to both the Alverstoke Scheme and the Forton Scheme. 
 
Officers understood Members wish to be honest with their residents and manage their 
expectations, address their concerns, and to make clear to them that Gosport Borough 
Council was not to blame for the funding shortfall. They assured them that they were still in 
the fight and exploring every funding avenue. The Environmental Agency will allow a small 
uplift on funding to counter inflation within the grant aid funding rules. 
 
 
Officers advised that approximately 20% of the spend to date was on the consents and 
consultation, and 40% on design work;  products that can still be of use, and a proportion of 
the spend on construction had provided useful information and learning which can be 
applied to the schemes.  
 
Members recognised that in any project unforeseen circumstances can arise that incur 
additional costs, but were keen to ensure that if other organisations had caused delays, a 
rise in costs or provided incorrect information, then they should be held responsible.   
 
Members were advised that the Local Levy was a fund contributed to annually by County 
and City Councils which can be applied for to top up projects, and is currently helping to 
fund a project at Stokes Bay. An application will be made in respect of the two schemes. 
 
Members wished to acknowledge the efforts and hard work that the Officers had put in to 
date, but requested a report be brought back to Board containing the following information: 
 

1. The time limits left on licenses and planning permissions, and any considerations for Covid in those 

timescales 

2. Forecasted cost funding gap and progress on closing that gap 

Page 6



Community & Environment Board 
10 January 2023 

 

3 

3. Forward work programme for both schemes 

4. SSE updates 

5. A breakdown of spend to date. 

 
Members wished to receive updates from Officers within the budget cycle eg before 
summer recess and then again in September/October. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Board noted: 
 

 The project remains paused until there is a significant change in the funding 
prospects.   

 Ongoing funding applications and work to manage scheme risk around buried 
services will be concluded. 

 A decision may be required in 2023/24 whether to continue to pursue the 
construction phase of the approved scheme.  

 
34. CONSTRUCTION OF FLOOD DEFENCE STRUCTURES AT FORTON  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Streetscene updating members on the 
progress of the Forton coastal defence scheme since the update in September 2022 and 
setting out the next stages for project delivery. 
 
Members were advised that the presence of Badgers on the Forton site was only verified in 
approximately December 2021 as the sett was underneath a prefabricated building and not 
found during the initial searches. The ecological consultant has been appointed and initial 
steps taken to investigate building a new sett elsewhere. Members recommended that 
Officers made contact with an expert in the field of badgers known to the Council to see if 
he can hasten the relocation plans. 
 
A Member reminded the Board that the Forton scheme incurred delays to allow the college 
to raise funding for a house building project, which is not proceeding. 
 
The report requested by Members and referred to in the previous item applies to the Forton 
scheme as well. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Board noted: 
 

 There remains insufficient funding to construct the scheme, and the location of a 
badger sett remains a significant risk to the project.  
 

 The available project funds will be utilised to progress applications to close the 
funding gap, while working to confirm the updated scheme costs and relocate the 
badger sett away from the works area.   

 
35. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 7



Community & Environment Board 
10 January 2023 

 

4 

 
 

Concluded at 6.56 pm 
 
 

Page 8



 

Board/Committee: Community & Environment Board 

Date of meeting: 1st March 2023 

Title: Stokes Bay East Seawall Replacement Project and Studies 

Author: Head of Streetscene, Stevyn Ricketts 

Status: FOR NOTING 

 
Purpose 

This report is to provide Members with a status update on the Stokes Bay East 
Seawall Replacement Project and longer term option appraisal and design study, 
Gosport. 

Recommendation 

The board is asked to note that: 

1. The Stokes Bay East Seawall Replacement Project has a significant 
funding gap that needs to be closed prior to construction procurement. 
A Planning Application and Marine Licence will continue to be 
progressed. 
 

2. The longer-term Stokes Bay Feasibility Study is appraising options for 
the sea defences in the wider bay and is expected to be completed in 
Autumn 2023.  

 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 Coastal Partners are responsible for the ongoing monitoring, maintenance 
and management of Gosport’s sea defences.  
 
The Stokes Bay section of coastline lies within policy unit 5B02 of the 
North Solent Shoreline Management Plan (SMP2). The management 
policy for this unit is to "Hold the Line" and was adopted by GBC 
Community Board in 2010. 
 
The site also sits within the Strategic Management Zone 3 (SMZ3) of the 
River Hamble to Portchester Coastal Strategy (RHPS) approved by the 
Environment Agency (EA) in 2015 and GBC Community Board in 2015. 
 
The recommendations for this section of frontage are to: 
 

 Develop and implement a Beach Management Plan (BMP), 
including beach recycling and future monitoring to maintain healthy 
beaches. 
 

 Undertake scheduled upgrades with maintenance as required to 
maintain existing sea defences, groynes and seawalls. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



GBC as a Coast Protection Authority are utilising its permissive powers 
under the Coast Protection Act 1949 to develop two projects for Stokes 
Bay. A seawall replacement project and a feasibility study, which are 
reported below.   
 

2.0 Report 
 

2.1 Progress Update Stokes Bay Seawall East Replacement Project 
 

2.2 On 18th March 2021 the Community Board endorsed the implementation 
of the proposed Phase 1 capital programme repair works to avert further 
damage to the failed seawall at Stokes Bay. This repair would address the 
immediate concerns, allow the car park to re-open and provide a medium-
term solution while longer term coastal management options are 
developed for the whole bay.  
 
The current approved budget is £500,000, consisting of £450,000 GBC 
capital funding and a £50,000 contribution from Hampshire Highways. 
 
The works included reconstructing 80m length of failed seawall with a more 
robust piled wall and promenade. The works were extended by 55m 
following damage sustained during Storm Eunice (see Appendix 1 map).  
 
Following procurement of a design consultant, construction drawings and 
specifications have been completed. All supporting documentation for the 
Planning Application and Marine licence have been drafted. Cost advice 
has been procured to assess the budget cost for the proposed works, prior 
to going to tender for construction.  
 
 

2.3 Budget Update Stokes Bay Seawall East Replacement Project 
 
The total spend to date including detailed design, consenting and project 
management is £84,786.63 (Dec ‘22). 
 
Applying the recent cost advice, the revised forecast outturn cost is 
£1,234,014 including risk and Optimum Bias. There is currently a project 
forecast variance of -£734,014 compared to the budget estimated at the 
end of 2020. 
 
 

Activity Description Outturn cost (£) 

Project staff 88,830 

Consultant fees 44,450 

Construction 856,040 

Risk (95th %ile) 210,452 

Optimism Bias 34,242 

Total forecast outturn 1,234,014 

 
 

Page 10



The variance is due to several factors:  

 Brexit, Covid19 and now the conflict in Ukraine have triggered 
hyper-inflation which is having a significant impact on the cost of 
construction materials, fuel, plant hire and labour. It has also 
significantly extended lead in times for materials.  

 The scope of the required works has also extended due to storm 
damage from Storm Eunice. 

 
Construction procurement cannot proceed until additional funding has 
been secured to cover the forecast outturn cost.  A Planning Application 
and Marine License application will be progressed. The project team are 
reviewing different funding sources to close the funding gap. Unfortunately, 
the project is not eligible for grant aid funding as there are no homes at 
flood or erosion risk.   
 
The seawall remains in a fragile condition and at risk. Should there be a 
risk of further wall damage, beach management works to recycle shingle in 
front of the wall will be considered.   
 

2.4 Progress Update - Stokes Bay Feasibility Study 
 

2.5 On 18th March 2021 the Community Board endorsed the implementation 
of a feasibility study into longer term coastal management options available 
to GBC and HCC for remaining seawalls in Stokes Bay. This study was 
funded through a combination of Local Levy funding and GBC and HCC 
contributions.   
 
The study is considering the future sea defences for between the East and 
West car park (see Appendix 2 map) from the perspective of flood and 
erosion, transport, tourism, heritage and the environment. However, 
integration of the wider Stokes Bay frontage will be taken into account 
when developing the Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management 
(FCERM) options. 
 
Following procurement of a design consultant, a series of draft options 
were developed for this frontage.  Budget costs were provided and 
adjusted for cost inflation. These indicated that the level of funding required 
to eventually construct these options would far exceed that available to 
both GBC and HCC.    
 
The Project Board reviewed the situation and directed that a low cost ‘Do 
Minimum’ option should be developed to address the short-term erosion 
risk. This would complement the more aspirational long-term option.  The 
project team are working with the design consultant to develop both these 
options and to present them as concept drawings.  The study is expected 
to complete in Autumn 2023 when the findings will be presented. 
 

2.6 
 

Budget  Update - Stokes Bay Feasibility Study 
 
The Stokes Bay study has a budget of £300,000 plus £90k contingency:  

Page 11



 £200,000 Local levy from the Southern Regional Flood and 
Coastal Committee (SRFCC) 

 £50,000 from Hampshire County Council (HCC) 

 £50,000 + £90,000 contingency from Gosport Borough Council 
(GBC) Community Board – Non-Housing Capital Programme - as 
approved by Full Council on 3rd February 2021.  

 
The current expenditure to date is: £111,946 and is on-budget. The 
forecast cost to complete the feasibility studies in Autumn 2023 is 
£300,000 and within the approved funding.  
 

3.0 Way Forward 
3.1 Stokes Bay Seawall East Replacement Project will prepare and submit the 

Planning and MMO applications.  Work to secure additional funding will 
continue.  
 
Stokes Bay Feasibility Study will continue to develop two concept options 
and present the study findings in the Autumn.  
 
 

4.0 Conclusion 
Stokes Bay Seawall East Replacement has been designed and costed.  
Licenses and consents have been prepared and will be submitted.  The 
project team are seeking ways to close the funding gap to allow the works 
to be constructed.  
 
Work on the Stokes Bay Feasibility Study is continuing to develop options 
for the sea defences in wider bay for to address the longer long term policy 
to hold the line.   
 

 
 

Financial Services comments: None for the purpose of this report. 

Legal Services comments: None for the purpose of this report. 

Equality and Diversity: None for the purpose of this report. 

Climate Change implications: None for the purpose of this report. 

Crime and Disorder: None for the purposes of this report. 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

Improving access to Stokes Bay. 

Corporate Plan: This scheme will improve community leisure 
facilities, improve health and well-being through 
developing a healthy environment and 
promoting an active lifestyle and make the most 
of the boroughs waterfront assets.  

Risk Assessment: See Section 2.3 of the report. 

Background Papers: Report to Community Board Meeting – 
1/11/2010 – North Solent Shoreline 
Management Plan – Adoption of the final plan. 
 

Page 12



Report to Community Board meeting - 
09/03/2015 
River Hamble to Porchester Coastal Flood and 
Erosion Risk management Strategy – Adoption. 
 
GBC Coastal Panel Briefing Paper 07/07/18 -
Stokes Bay Road Frontage – Coast Protection. 
 
GBC Coastal Panel Briefing Paper 28/10/20 -
Stokes Bay Road Frontage – Coast Protection 
Update. 
 
Report to Full Council 02/02/2021 – Medium 
Term Finance Strategy and budget (revenue 
and capital) 2021/22. 
 

Appendices: 1. Location plan Stokes Bay East Seawall 
replacement.  

2. Location plan, Stokes Bay feasibility 
study. 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Luke Ellison / Rupert Teasdale, Coastal 
Partners - Emma Stainer, Coastal Partners 

Page 13



Appendix 1: Location Plan, Stokes Bay East Seawall Replacement Project. 

. 

P
age 14



Appendix 2: Location plan, Stokes Bay Feasibility Study.  

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Board/Committee: COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT BOARD 
Date of meeting: WEDNESDAY 1st MARCH 2023 
Title: CONSTRUCTION OF FLOOD DEFENCE STRUCTURES AT 

FORTON 
Author: HEAD OF STREETSCENE 
Status: FOR NOTING 

 

Purpose 

This report updates Members on progress with the Forton coastal defence scheme 
since the update in January 2023 and sets out the next stages for project delivery. 

Recommendation 

That the Board notes that this report provides further project details as 
requested at the previous Community and Environment Board held on 10 
January 2023. 

1.0 Background  
 

1.1 
 
 

A project status update was given to the Community and Environment Board 
on 10th January 2023. The Board requested a report be brought back to Board 
containing further information around project expenditure, funding and 
consents.  
  

2.0 Report 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Funding  
 
Expenditure to date:  
The scheme is primarily funded from Environment Agency Grant Aid and 
Local Levy Funds. Table 1 summarises the amount claimed to date on the 
project (£664,644), and of that sum, £610,531 has been spent on the project 
and £53,614 budget remains.  
 
Table 1. Expenditure to date 

 
 
Since 2019, The total project spend of £610,531 has been spent over four 
financial years (Table 2).  
 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 2. Expenditure to date per financial year 

 
 
This spend can be attributed to the project activities summarised in Figure 1.  
 
The majority of the project expenditure has been utilised on ‘non-construction’ 
activities and which were required to develop the project from the Outline 
Business Case to the detailed design stage, gain the required licencing and 
consents, and then works procurement. This included payments to the design 
consultant to cover ground investigations and preparation of the design 
drawings and scope. Construction related activities represent 31% of the 
overall spend to date.  

 
Figure 1. Spend breakdown associated with Project activities.  
 
 
 
A project timeline which provides further detail on activities and expenditure 
over the past 4 years is provided in Appendix 1.  
 

HR, Admin & Other, 
3% (£20,205)

Construction, Site 
works and 

Supervision, 31%
(£190,361)

Communications 
and Engagement, 3%

(£20,452)

Licensing and Consents & 
Environmental Studies, 

Mitigation and 
Enhancements, 10%

(£63,830)

Detailed Design, 
Funding and 

Approvals and PCS, 
20% (£125,091)

Procurement, 4%
(£25,495)

Project Management 
, 27% (£165,097)

Page 18



2.2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Funding forecast and gap: 
 
Since the previous Community and Environment Board update in January 
2023, the project has been allocated £681,184 of funding from the Department 
for Education Fund. An FDGiA inflation claim is currently being prepared to 
cover all justifiable inflationary cost increases. The project has a potential 
estimated £1.4million of funding available (not spent) as shown in Table 3.  
 
Table 3. Secured funding (not spent) 

 
 

The estimated forecast outturn cost needed to complete the project, with and 
without risk has been summarised in Table 4, this estimate is pending further 
financial analysis. The revised funding profile indicates that a provisional sum 
of £604,734 of funding is required to close the funding gap and enable delivery 
of the scheme and construction to restart in 2024, following successful 
mitigation of the badger sett risk. Further funding options are being explored 
and a bid for additional RFCC Local Levy funding was made in January 2023 
to close this gap.  
 
Table 4. Funding required 

 
 

3.0 Way Forward: 
 
The project continues with the phased approach to the exception plan as 
outlined within the 10th January Community and Environment Board update.  
 
The estimated forecast outturn has assumed that construction works can 
resume in 2024.  
 
Licences and Consents: 
A number of licensing and consents have already been obtained for the Forton 
FCERM Scheme. Due to the delay to the construction start date in 2021 
(Covid-19) and the pause of construction works in 2022 (Badger sett & 
inflation), the status of current licences and consents can be seen in Table 5.  
 
A GBC six-month extension to planning permissions that would have expired 
between 19th August 2020 and 31st December 2020 did not apply to the 
Forton FCERM scheme as the approval was granted after those dates, and 
the planning permission does not expire until January 2024. 

Page 19



 
Table 5. Status update on Forton FCERM Scheme licenses and consents  

Licence 
or 
Consent 

Expiration 
Date: 

Status: Cost to renew: 

Planning 
application 
on the 
existing 
design 

14 January 
2024 

In-date for the existing 
design. Any changes 
to the design may 
require additional 
planning permission 

Based upon previous application £964 

Marine 
Licence 

30 
November 
2022 

Expired Based upon previous £4,270 (hopefully 
scope to reduce this significantly) 

FRAP Outdated Requires a new 
application, as the 
previous applicant’s 
name is out of date 

Estimated £1,595 – based on previous 
application 

Crown 
Estate 

2026 with 
annual 
extensions 

Annual extensions 
required for a fee of 
£50/annum.  

£250 initial fee, £50/annum + admin fees 
(unknown) 

Badger 
licence to 
interfere 
with setts 

N/A Needs new 
application 

Consultant cost (Phillips): £7,092 (however 
this is based upon the badgers being 
moved). 
Disturbance licence cost: The cost of this 
licence is calculated to the nearest quarter of 
an hour, based on an hourly rate of £101 plus 
a £61 compliance check. Most licences are 
likely to cost between £300 and £800, 
including the compliance check charge.  

 
 

4.0 Risk Assessment  
4.1 
 

The project risks are as per the exception plan as outlined within the 10th 
January Community and Environment Board update. 
 

5.0 Conclusion 
5.1  

• The project started in 2019 and took place during unprecedented times 
with the impacts of Covid-19 and inflation affecting the forecast outturn 
costs both directly and in-directly.  

• The majority of the project expenditure has been utilised on ‘non-
construction’ activities and which were required to develop the project 
from the Outline Business Case to the detailed design stage 

• All steps were taken to mitigate the badger risks once confirmed by the 
ecological consultant in April 2022 and construction works were paused 
following this.    

• A provisional forecast outturn cost for the scheme and funding gap has 
been identified. 

• Project risks remain unchanged from the exception plan outline in the 
10th January Community and Environment Board update.  

• Licencing and consents will require either updating or new applications 
ahead of any construction works.  

• The project team are working collaboratively with the Environment 
Agency to identify potential funds.  

 

Page 20



 

Financial Services comments: None for the purposes of this report. 
Legal Services comments: None for the purposes of this report. 
Equality and Diversity: None for the purposes of this report. 
Climate Change implications: None for the purposes of this report. 
Crime and Disorder: None for the purposes of this report. 
Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

To improve coastal defences. 

Corporate Plan: Develop the economy by encouraging 
investment, protecting and improving 
infrastructure and land use by developing a 
programme of coastal defences. 

Risk Assessment: Contained within paragraph 3 of the report. 
Background Papers: Community Board 10th February 2021 – Award 

of contract to the preferred bidder. 
 
Policy & Organisational Board 20th July 2021 - 
Support of the risk underwriting by the Council 
for costs in excess of the current approved 
funding.  
 
Community and Environment Board, 14 
September 2022 – status update: Risks and 
inflation have put project budget under 
pressure. Works paused, site reinstated and 
future delivery of scheme to be assessed. 
 
Community and Environment Board, 10 
January 2023 - Progress update on the Forton 
and coastal defence scheme. 

Appendices: APPENDIX 1. Forton Project Timeline 
Report Author/Lead Officer: Steve Fitzmaurice/Stevyn Ricketts 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Date of meeting: 1
st
 MARCH 2023 

Title: APPENDIX 1: FORTON PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Board/Committee: COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT BOARD 
Date of meeting: WEDNESDAY 1st MARCH 2023 
Title: CONSTRUCTION OF FLOOD DEFENCE STRUCTURES AT 

ALVERSTOKE 
Author: HEAD OF STREETSCENE 
Status: FOR NOTING 

 

Purpose 

This report updates Members on the Alverstoke coastal defence scheme since the update 
in January 2023 and sets out the next stages for the project. 

Recommendation 

That the Board notes that this report provides further project details as requested at 
the previous Community and Environment Board held on 10th January 2023. 

1.0 Background  
 

1.1 
 
 

A project status update was given to the Community and Environment Board on 
10th January 2023. The Board requested a report be brought back to Board 
containing further information around project expenditure and funding.  
 

2.0 Report 
 

2.1 
 

Funding: 
 
Expenditure to date: 
The scheme is primarily funded from Environment Agency Grant Aid totalling 
£932,238. Table 1 summarises the amount claimed to date on the project 
(£932,238), and of that sum, £907,629 has been spent on the project and £24,609 
budget remains. 
 
Table 1.  

 
 
Since 2018, £907,628 has been spent on the project over five financial years 
(Table 2). 
 
Table 2. 

  

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



 

 
Figure 1 confirms the majority of the project expenditure has been utilised on ‘non-
construction’ activities and which were required to develop the project from the 
Outline Business Case to the detailed design stage, gain the required licencing 
and consents, and then works procurement. This included payments to the design 
consultant to cover ground investigations and preparation of the design drawings 
and scope. Construction related activities represent 29% of the overall spend to 
date.  
 

 
 
Figure 1. Spend breakdown associated with Project activities. 
 
A project timeline which provides further detail on activities and expenditure over 
the past 5 years is provided in Appendix 1.  
 

3.0 Funding forecast and gap: 
 
The project has a potential estimated £442,878 of remaining available project 
funding as shown in Table 3. Further funding options continue to be explored. 
 
The available funding remains insufficient to meet the expected outturn costs of 
the construction, and which have risen through inflation.  
 
Table 3. Secured funding (not spent) 

 

HR, Admin & Other, 
4% (£40,078)

Construction, Site 
works and 

Supervision, 29%
(£266,985)

Communications and 
Engagement, 6%

(£52,101)

Licensing and Consents & 
Environmental Studies, 

Mitigation and Enhancements, 
10% (£89,449)

Detailed Design, 
Funding and 

Approvals and PCS, 
17% (£153,055)

Procurement, 5%
(£44,153)

Project Management , 
29% (£261,808)

Page 26



 

 
4.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Way forward 
 
The project continues with the phased approach to the exception plan as outlined 
within the 10 January Community and Environment Board update.  
 
Licences and Consents: 
Licenses and consents have already been obtained for the Alverstoke FCERM 
Scheme. Due to the delay to the construction start date in 2021 (Covid-19) and 
the pause of construction works in 2022 (HV cables & inflation), the status of 
current licences and consents can be seen in Table 5.  
 
A GBC six-month extension to planning permissions that would have expired 
between 19 August 2020 and 31 December 2020 did not apply to the Alverstoke 
FCERM scheme as the approval was granted after those dates, and the planning 
permission does not expire until December 2023.  
 
 
Table 5. Status update on Alverstoke FCERM scheme licences and consents 

Licence or 
Consent 

Expiration 
Date: 

Status: Cost to renew: 

Planning application 
on the existing 
design 

8 December 
2023 

In date, works must start 
before expiration date 

If new permission 
required, £262 (based 
on previous application) 

Marine Licence December 
2022 

Expired £1,400 based on 
previous application 

FRAP Outdated Requires a new application, 
as the previous applicant’s 
name is out of date 

Estimated £1,595 – 
based on previous 
application 

Crown Estate Expired Extension required.  Estimate £500 
(including admin fees) 

 
 

4.0 Risk Assessment  
 

4.1  The project risks are as per the exception plan as outlined within the 10th January 
Community and Environment Board update. 
 

5.0 Conclusion 
 

5.1  
• The project commenced in 2018 and took place during unprecedented 

times with the impacts of Covid-19 and inflation affecting the forecast 
outturn costs both directly and in-directly.  

• The majority of the project expenditure has been utilised on ‘non-
construction’ activities and which were required to develop the project from 
the Outline Business Case to the detailed design stage. 

• There remains insufficient funding to construct the scheme.  
• Licencing and consents for the Alverstoke FCERM scheme will require 

either updating or new applications ahead of any construction works. 
• The project team are working collaboratively with the Environment Agency 

to identify potential funds.  
 

Page 27



 

 

Financial Services comments: None for the purposes of this report. 
Legal Services comments: None for the purposes of this report. 
Equality and Diversity: None for the purposes of this report. 
Climate Change implications: None for the purposes of this report. 
Crime and Disorder: None for the purposes of this report. 
Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

To improve coastal defences. 

Corporate Plan: Develop the economy by encouraging investment, 
protecting and improving infrastructure and land use 
by developing a programme of coastal defences. 

Risk Assessment: Contained within paragraph 3 of the report. 
Background Papers: Community Board 10th February 2021 – Award of 

contract to the preferred bidder. 
 
Policy & Organisational Board 20th July 2021 - 
Support of the risk underwriting by the Council for 
costs in excess of the current approved funding.  
 
Community and Environment Board, 14 September 
2022 – status update: Risks and inflation have put 
project budget under pressure. Works paused, site 
reinstated and future delivery of scheme to be 
assessed. 
 
Community and Environment Board, 10 January 
2023, progress update on the Alverstoke coastal 
defence scheme. 

Appendices: Appendix 1. Alverstoke Project Timeline 
Report Author/Lead Officer: Steve Fitzmaurice/Stevyn Ricketts 

 

Page 28



Date of meeting: 1
st
 MARCH 2023 

Title: APPENDIX 1: ALVERSTOKE PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	6 Stokes Bay East Seawall Replacement project and Studies.
	7 Construction of Flood Defence Structures at Forton
	Forton_CB_Appendix 1

	8 Construction of Flood Defence Structures at Alverstoke
	Alverstoke_CB_Appendix 1


